
City Council – Action Request Form 

Date: August 9, 2021 

To: Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, and Members of the City Council 

From: 

Damon C. Dequenne, Assistant City Manager 

William Royston, Recreation & Parks Director 

Jerry Bates, Purchasing Director 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Consideration of Items Related to Sprague Street Pool Conversion: (Southeast Ward) 

Resolution Awarding Construction Contract for Sprague Street Splashpad 

Project Budget Ordinance Amendment to Appropriate Funds for Project Expenditures 

Strategic Focus Area: Livable Neighborhoods  

Strategic Objective: Expand Open Space and Recreational Facilities 

Strategic Plan Action Item: No 

Key Work Item: Yes 

Summary of Information:  

Sprague Street Pool Conversion to a splashpad is a 2018 G.O. Bond project.  The City has 

purchased the splashpad items separately - mini water slide, Superwave, geysers and fountain 

spray features - as approved by City Council on May 17, 2021 for $233,376.15. 

 

This project will fill in the existing pool with concrete/stone/dirt, replace some concrete areas, 

install controllers and pumps in equipment room, install plumbing lines and tank and install the 

aforementioned splashpad features.  The scope of work also includes an underground surge tank, 

pumps and controls for the splashpad, equipment room installations, concrete replacement, 

remove, paint and re-install pool the fence.  There are four bid alternates to include: #1) brick 

seat wall/fencing/site furniture, #2) new front drive with two ADA parking spaces and 

landscaping, #3) colored concrete splashpad, and #4) demolish kiddie pool and fence, remove 

pool ladders/diving boards/access chair, modify pool drain lines as drain leaders, pressure 

washing, and overseeding grassed areas. 
 

The City advertised bids for construction of Sprague Street Splashpad.  Bids were scheduled to 

be received on May 19, 2021, but fewer than three bids were offered as required by North 

Carolina General Statute (N.C.G.S.) 143-132(a).  Therefore, in accordance with N.C.G.S. 143-

129, the project was re-advertised. 
 

  

 
Committee Finance 8/9/2021 Action Approval 

For Unanimous Against  

Remarks: 



Bids were then opened on May 27, 2021, with a summary of bids as follows: 
 

 City/State Base Bid Alternates #1, 3, 4 

 Dreambuilt Construction, Inc. Advance, NC $353,900 $166,300 

 

The low bidder, Dreambuilt Construction, Inc., agreed to subcontracting goals other than those 

established for this project of 15% with minority-owned businesses and 2% with woman-owned 

businesses.  Therefore, pursuant to the City’s M/WBE Policy, the Citizen's M/WBE Advisory 

Committee met to review and consider all documentation of the bidder's good faith efforts which 

follow this resolution.  The committee determined that the bidder did make necessary good faith 

efforts to achieve the established subcontracting goals.  N.C.G.S. 143-128.2(f) requires a 

contractor to accumulate a minimum of 50 out of 100 points to demonstrate a Good Faith Effort.  

In addition to the point system, state legislation explicitly lists the efforts required by a contractor. 

In the review conducted by the M/WBE Citizens Advisory Committee, the contractor must 

accumulate a minimum of 115 out of 180 points to demonstrate a Good Faith Effort. The City’s 

stringent modification ensures contractors are exhausting all opportunities, per the statue’s 

specifications, to achieve certified minority-and women-owned business participation.  

Dreambuilt Construction, Inc., will be required to subcontract, as a minimum, 10.0% of this 

contract with certified minority-owned businesses and 21.0% with certified women-owned 

businesses as indicated on the Affidavit “D” submitted by the company. 

 

The 2018 G.O. Bond allocated $480,000 for the construction budget, which includes the splashpad 

features.  After the purchase of the splashpad features, only $246,623.85 remains in the project 

budget.  Recreation & Parks desires to award Alternates #1, #3, and #4 in the total amount of 

$166,300 and to reject Alternate #2; therefore, the total award would be $353,900 plus $166,300 

for alternates #1, #3, and #4 for a total award amount of $520,200 leaving a funding shortfall of 

$273,576.15.  An Amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance is attached which appropriates the 

necessary funding to complete this project. 

  

It is therefore recommended that a contract for construction of the Sprague Street Splashpad be 

awarded to Dreambuilt Construction, Inc., the low bidder meeting specifications, in the base bid 

amount of $353,900 plus $166,300 for alternates #1, #3, and #4 for a total award amount of 

$520,200.  The designer’s estimate was $269,969 (base bid without splashpad features) plus 

$68,735 for alternates #1, #3, and #4. 

 
M/WBE comment:  This project was advertised on the City and State websites and with several 

electronic plan rooms.  Notifications were sent to all local M/WBE and regional HUB businesses 

on a weekly basis.  See Exhibit A for a complete list of businesses that were notified the bidding 

opportunity and the low bidder’s Workplace Demographics form.  Dreambuilt Construction, Inc. 

is a woman-owned business enterprise. 


